CITY OF HANOVER
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
JUNE 27, 2022
OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

Stan Kolasa called the June 27, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:03 pm. Members present
were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Dean Kuitunen, Gretchen Barrett, and John Ganfield. Also present City
Planner Cindy Nash, City Engineer Jennifer Edison, Council Liaison Jim Zajicek and Administrative
Assistant Amy Biren. Many guests were present.

Approval of Agenda
MOTION by Schendel to approve the amended agenda, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Approval of Minutes from the May 23, 2022, Regular Meeting
MOTION by Schendel to approve the May 23, 2022, minutes, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum
None

Public Hearing
Variance from Setback at 317 Riverview Circle

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:04 am.

Nash reviewed the request for the variance saying 317 Riverview Circle is an unusually shaped lot and the
applicant is asking for a variance from the building setback. They are requesting the setback be 23.6 feet
instead of the 25 feet as platted since the house plan selected by the buyers would not meet the setback.
Other styles of house plans from the builder would meet the setback.

Art Plante, JP Brooks, acknowledged that this is self-imposed and the buyer would like a three-car garage
which the other plans do not offer. With the extra space within the cul de sac and the setback being only
slightly closer, it will not be noticeable to most people.

Barrett asked if there was a sidewalk on this side of the street. Nash replied that the sidewalk is located on
the other side of the street.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission meeting at 7:09 pm.
Ganfield stated that the difference is pretty minimal.

MOTION by Kuitunen to recommend approval of the variance to the setback at 317 Riverview Circle,
seconded by Barrett.
Motion carried unanimously.

Ordinance Amendment and Amendment to an Interim Use Permit (IUP) at Fehn Aggregate
Mine, 1401 River Road NE

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:11 pm.

Nash explained that there are two different items for consideration tonight. The first is an ordinance
amendment to permit Saturday hauling of materials, but not to allow other mining operations. She reminded
the Board that when this was proposed previously, the Planning Commission gave a recommendation for
approval, but the City Council denied it with the caveat of waiting until after 15" Street was reconstructed
and how the mining operations adhered to the IUP.



Kuitunen asked if the counts provided by Fehn correlated with counts done by the City. Edison explained
that WSB had installed cameras in May to monitor the truck traffic and queuing that was occurring. The
studies do correlate.

Kuitunen asked for clarification on the truck count and whether a number represents a round trip or not.
Edison stated that each time a truck enters or leaves, it is counted as a single unit. The numbers do not
represent round trips.

Nash continued with the second item related to the Fehn Aggregate Mine and that they are applying for an
amendment to their current IUP to allow Saturday hauling and to increase the number of trucks allowed to
haul.

Kuitunen asked over what time period was the number of trucks hauling averaged. Nash replied that
currently it is over a quarter.

Gary Fehn, applicant, thanked the Planning Commission for considering the amendments before them
tonight. He explained that Fehn Companies has invested half a million dollars with the 15" Street
improvements which included reconstruction the road to reduce noise, adding a turn lane and crosswalk,
and installing a trail. Fehn Companies takes complaints very seriously and when there were issues with
engine braking, all of the drivers hauling out of the mine were contacted. He went on to explain that the
mine benefits the area by paying gravel taxes and property taxes. He continued saying that Fehn Companies
is part of the community and is growing as is the community itself.

Scott Dahlke, engineer for the applicant, explained that the Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW)
was completed in 2019 along with a traffic study. He stated that traffic study computed trucks hauling on
a yearly basis while the IUP averages the number of trucks on a quarterly basis. He confirmed that he did
not make adjustments from the yearly numbers to the quarterly numbers. Dahlke went on to say that since
2019, development has increased not only in Hanover, but in the entire area. With that increase, there are
more streets and roads being constructed, therefore, an increase in the need for mining materials. He stated
that Fehn Companies is a good company and have made improvements. They were proactive and did
another traffic study which looked at the improvements that had been made and how it would be impacted
by a higher truck count. The traffic study shows that it is sufficient for a high truck count and would be
able to handle the increase. The applicant is looking to bring everything into compliance.

Kolasa stated that the Board would like to hear from audience members.

Sloan Carlson, 1044 Mallard Street, stated he listens to the noise during the week and is not in favor of the
weekend hours. He would like to have a noise-free weekend. Carlson also requested that a sheriff’s deputy
be stationed at the intersection as trucks are rolling through the stop signs.

Chad Libby, 1315 Oakwood Lane, said Hanover is the small city on the river and his family enjoys the
green space and lack of noise pollution. Allowing more trucks to haul and during the weekends is impacting
why they live in Hanover. He is concerned with the intersection at 15" Street and CSAH 19 as it is difficult
to make a turn with the big trucks alongside of a smaller vehicle. When the trucks inch forward, it is
difficult to see approaching traffic. There needs to be changes to the traffic controls there. The Board needs
to ask what number of trucks is acceptable.

Jeff Martenson, 1450 Esterly Oaks Drive, acknowledged that Fehn did a good job on 15" Street, but his
customers were the ones that ruined it. It is too noisy with too many trucks. He does not want to see
Saturday trucks as he wants to enjoy the quiet during the weekend. The people along 15" Street shouldn’t
be sacrificed. The mine was put in the middle of a residential area and there needs to be restrictions.

Nate Wiley, 11220 Lambert Court, said he did not receive a notice and would like to know why. He also
asked what is the goal of the Planning Commission.

Kuitunen explained that the Planning Commission must look at all land applications and act as a pseudo-
judicial body.



Wiley continued stating that the Planning Commission cannot recommend this as it is an issue that impacts
lives. Noise impacts all parts of people’s lives. He said that there is no posted speed limit on 15" Street
and there needs to be. The trucks hauling do not abide by the rules. He believes there should be a proposal
for an alternate route.

Karen Brown, 11355 16™ Street, St. Michael, explained she lives in one of the townhouses that face 15
Street. She explained that she called about the engine breaking and it was quiet for about a week and then
it started again.

Carrie Fargo, 11190 14" Street, said that trucks are going through the stop signs. It doesn’t matter that they
repaved the street because they were the ones that ruined the street. She continued saying that it is difficult
to use the turn lanes and get out onto CSAH 19. She doesn’t think its right to increase the number of trucks.

Matt Meyer, 1027 Emerald, explained the pit is in his backyard and he hears mining noise all of the time.
There is dust all over the house from the mining operation. It is difficult to see when using the 15" Street
turn lanes to CSAH 19 when there are gravel trucks there. He does not know how increasing the trucks
will work and does not want a more dangerous situation.

Nicole Packard, 1465 Irvine Drive, stated the mine was not here in this capacity when she moved to
Hanover. They need to make more changes before its approved. She said that it is 15" Street, not County
Road 15. She asked what is it going to take to fix this and stated that a speed limit sign is needed. Packard
continued saying they have admitted that they are working outside of the IUP hours and humber of trucks
hauling. What are the repercussions of working outside of the IUP. She said that she would like to support
a local business, but wants modifications to include traffic signals, speed limit signs, a tree buffer, and
spring weight restrictions. She said that she thinks the trucks that are causing the problems are not the Fehn
trucks but the other companies hauling out of the mine. The Board needs to find something that works for
both the business and the residents. She would support Saturday hours if there were restrictions.

Jake Gardner, 1012 Mallard Street, said he moved to Hanover without the knowledge of the mine that was
going to be behind his house. He would like there to be no Saturday hours. He works from home and can
hear them start working before the time designated and well after the end time. His kids need a break from
the noise during the weekend as well as the people that don’t have the opportunity to work from home. He
feels that Fehn is getting what he wants and no one is looking at what the community needs. If the trucks
increase to 500, how long will it be until it is increased even more?

Sara Watercott, 1044 Emerald Street, said she would like to have a day without noise. There is dust and
dirt all over her house and she is wondering what her children and self are breathing in. When the berm
was being built, it shook the house and now there is a crack in the foundation. What will happen as the
mining operation moves closer to the house? She is against Saturday traffic. Traffic is everywhere during
the weekend with people coming and going into town. What is the future traffic study and estimation?

Linda Burke, 1420 Esterly Oaks Drive, explained she moved to Hanover in 2002 when the mine wasn’t an
issue and have watched it get to what it is now and it has impacted how she enjoys her home. She can count
the number of trucks just by hearing the trucks and this if from any room in the house. She does not want
Saturday hours or an increased number of trucks. The engine breaking has decreased but the air horns have
increased since school is out and the kids want the truck drivers to honk their horns. She stated she moved
out here for the peace and quiet and have made enough concessions. The estimated time for the St. Michael
development hauling dirt is two years and that is another increase in truck traffic. There needs to be a way
to find a way to live in peace with Fehn and the community. She added that she is concerned with the resale
value of her home because of all of the traffic—she wouldn’t want to buy her own home in this city. Please
hear what the residents are saying.

Joel Anderson, 1336 Esterly Oakes Drive, expressed thanks for rebuilding 15" Street but wonders how fast
it will deteriorate with the increased truck traffic. There is a proposed development on tonight’s agenda
and it will be using 15" Street and there will be more trucks.



Jill Churchill, 11235 Lambert Court, state they were not informed about this. They moved here not long
ago and work in Minneapolis. They like being here, but have noticed the noise increasing and have had to
put sound barriers in the windows. She stated having more trucks and Saturday hours is not a good thing.
The trucks are impeding her vision when turning left on CSAH 19 from 15" Street. The truck noise has
gone down with the repaving of 15" Street.

Derek Ritter, 1227 Irvine Drive, addressed the Board and the audience saying that he is Native American.
He sees this as a reoccurring theme of complaints similar to those in the past. He gave the example of how
Enbridge would like to extend its pipeline and that it is impacting the Native Americans. His uncle, a
Native American, is working with Enbridge to seek a compromise. Ritter continued asking the audience to
take a look at themselves and if they came just to complain. If they truly believe it’s not right, then do more
than just tonight.

Chad Reller, 11539 Lynwood Court, stated there should be zero concessions made tonight. The truck traffic
is crazy right now. He believes there would be more people at this meeting had it been announced. He has
called the City and called Fehn about trucks traveling River Road. He told the Board to look at what the
residents are saying and what will the residents get out of this. He said he lives half a mile away from the
mine and can hear the crusher.

Mike Christenson, 1361 Esterly Oaks Drive, emailed a letter and Biren read it aloud. The letter
acknowledged that hard work was done in the past for the IUP and concessions on both the part of the
residents and Fehn were made. The controversial concerns still remain such as the noise, dust and truck
traffic. He encouraged the Planning Commission and the City Council to keep the current IUP in place and
not expand the number of trucks or operating hours. Christenson is a former Planning Commission
member.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 8:32 pm.

Kolasa reminded the audience that the Public Hearing was officially closed and it was now the Planning
Commission’s opportunity to discuss the proposals. If audience members wanted to speak, they needed to
raise their hand, but Kolasa made no promise of allowing them additional input.

Kolasa listed the concerns or items that he heard during public input: the need for a sound barrier; dust
from the mining operation; a speed limit on 15" Street; engine breaking occurring repeatedly; trucks rolling
through the stop sign; and blind turns at 15" Street and CSAH 19.

Kuitunen reminded them that the County is in charge of CSAH 19.

Zajicek asked Fehn about the hours of operation and if it is 7 am to 7 pm, then what does that mean to him?
Fehn replied that trucks haul from 7 am to 7 pm and also the mine operations in the pit. Fehn continued
saying that they are allowed to fire up the equipment at 6:30 am. Zajicek stated that trucks are hauling
before and after that time period. Zajicek said he was at the intersection from 6:35-6:45 am and saw trucks
in the pit. He went to say that Fehn knows that he is not a proponent of Saturday hours and that it’s a big
deal for these residents. Zajicek told Fehn he needs to be following the rules and this needs to be fixed.
Fehn apologized and stated that he would take care of it. Zajicek said that he understands that Fehn cannot
control everything, but that he needs to put his best foot forward. Fehn said he will reach out to the drivers.

Kolasa asked Nash that with all of the things that need to be addressed, how should the Board proceed.
Nash responded that the ordinance amendment needs to be considered first before the IUP amendment.

Nash responded to some of the comments made during public input. She reminded the audience that 15
Street is a collector road and used to be a county road. Edison explained that CSAH 19 will be undergoing
improvements in 2024. The project is currently working with business owners along CSAH 19 and then
will reach out to the community for input through public engagement. Roundabouts are part of this project.



Zajicek asked if 15" Street is part of the project and if not, does it need to be part of it. Edison replied that
15 Street has not been included in the recent discussions, but that she was making note of it.

Nash continued with responding to concerns and said that a number of items would be at the City level.
The speed and stop sign issues could be handled by the Wright County Sheriff’s Department, as well as the
engine breaking.

Nash stated that prior the current IUP, the previous one did allow for Saturday hours.
Nash said that dust control is already a part of the current 1UP.

Kuitunen agreed with the concerns about 15" Street and said that it is hard to turn either direction onto
CSAH 19. He also said that the City Council had said previously to wait and see how the IUP was working
out and perhaps that was the right thing.

Barrett said previously when the IUP amendment was recommended for approval by the Planning
Commission, Council didn’t approve the Saturday hours. It’s been proven that rules have not been
followed.

Ganfield confirmed that the truck counts were by day and then averaged for the quarter.

Nash reminded the Board that when considering the recommendations, it is not an all or nothing scenario
and that the Board does have options. She reminded them that this is the only business in town that has
restrictions placed upon it.

Schendel asked whether or not it could be determined if the trucks were coming out of Fehn Aggregate or
the St. Michael pit when WSB did the traffic count. Edison stated that the camera only recorded the number
of trucks, not from where they were coming.

Schendel said he doesn’t think that we are being fair to them and that should be able to increase the number
of trucks hauling.

Barrett responded that they are already over.

Kuitunen asked for the truck count again. Nash responded that in 2021, second quarter was 120, third
quarter was 170, and fourth quarter was 180. The first quarter only had 32.

Schendel said that a compromise is needed.

MOTION by Barrett to recommend denial of the ordinance amendment to permit hauling hours on
Saturdays, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried.

Nash stated because the Board recommended denial of the ordinance amendment, the Board should
recommend denial of the hours being requested in the IUP amendment. The Board will need to make a
decision on the number of trucks and change the averaging to annually instead of quarterly. This would
help in spreading out the trucks as sometimes projects cross quarter time periods.

Kuitunen asked about enforcing the IUP and would there need to be an increase in staffing at the City.
Zajicek responded that wouldn’t be needed because the Wright County Sheriff’s Department could be out
there and concerns would be voiced to Fehn.

MOTION by Barrett to recommend denial to amend the IUP that would allow Saturday hours and increased
truck loads, seconded by Ganfield.

Schendel asked Barret would she accept amending the truck number to 250 instead of 500. Barrett
responded no.



Biren requested a roll call vote as it was difficult to hear how the Board voted:

Kolasa Aye
Schendel Nay
Kuitunen Aye
Barrett Aye
Ganfield Aye

Motion carried.
Kolasa recessed the Planning Commission meeting for a five-minute break.
Kolasa reconvened the Planning Commission meeting at 9 pm.
The Highlands at Crow River and the Vistas at Crow River — 10701 Beebe Lake Road
Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 9:01 pm.

Nash introduced the preliminary plat and planned unit development (PUD) for the development known as
The Highlands and The Vistas at Crow River which is located along the southern side of Beebe Lake Road
at the intersection with CSAH 19. She explained that there are three sections within the property: one
section which has a large wetland would be single-family homes on five (5) larger lots; there would be 34
lots in the northwest corner connecting Kalen Drive and Sixth Street with single-family homes; and lastly,
26 lots with an entrance off of Beebe Lake Road that would be smaller lots comprised of single level
townhomes and two-story townhomes and is a more private and separated area from the rest of the
development. The townhomes with the smaller lot sizes and setbacks would require a PUD. Nash said that
there are a number of comments in the packet which is normal, but she would like to point out items that
need to be discussed:

e Atrail is outlined in the Comprehensive Plan within this development and would end at Hanover
Elementary. No funds are committed to the trail at this time and it needs to be decided whether or
not to pursue a trail in this area. This would also be discussed with the Park Board.

e The type of housing in the area with access to Beebe Lake Road. The developer will be showing
this during his presentation.

e The purpose of each outlot in the plat, what is in each outlot, and who will own and maintain the
outlots. Typically, in the past, the outlots were deeded to the City and the City would maintain
them as the outlots were usually stormwater ponds. Part of this larger discussion is the large
wetland on the property.

e An HOA and what would it cover—all of the development or only part of it.

Chuck Ryan, Homestead Partners, gave a presentation outlining the community and financial benefits to
the City of Hanover. He also showed the different housing types that would be within the development. A
copy of the presentation is attached to the minutes. Ryan stated that they would like to start constructing
homes this fall.

Brian Trisko, 11419 12" Street, asked about an environmental study. Aaron Carrell, Hansen Thorp Pellinen
Olson, Inc., Civil Engineering, said that Phase 1 and the preliminary geo-tech is fully in compliance.

Jim DiOrio, 10570 Prairie Lane, asked about the reasoning of moving the cul de sac into the larger lot
development area. Ryan responded that it was a nice transition from the Hanover Hills neighborhood into
to an area with smaller lot sizes. Also, there are temporary cul de sacs that need to be removed per the City.

Bob Neuberger, 10486 Kalland Lane, stated that one of the temporary cul de sacs makes up most of his
front yard and he will be getting his front yard back when it is removed.

Joel Anderson, 1336 Esterly Oaks Drive, asked why would the developer propose eliminating street lights
in favor of automatic photocells on the homes as stated in the presentation. Anderson also wanted to know
who would maintain the photocells.

Kevin Vikingson, 10486 Sixth Street, stated that this plan has ignored the feedback that was given.



Kuitunen reminded Vikingson that this is the first meeting since the Concept Plan was presented.

Vikingson continued with his comments saying that the trees are going to be clear cut; the developer is
ignoring the collector road that is outlined in the Comprehensive Plan; there is no reason to take out the cul
de sacs; and the gully in the spring has more water in it than most know and there are drainage issues.

Kale Kripner, 10483 Sixth Street, also stated that the trees would be cut down and that there are drainage
issues. He questioned how a road could be constructed without bringing in fill. He also said that a visit by
the developers would be appreciated and feels like they are packing the houses in.

Alison Barbeln, 10481 Kalen Drive, stated that there are some serious wetland issues for this development.
She said that the developer is taking away green space, increasing the traffic, and eliminating the trees and
wildlife they enjoy. Barbeln asked what the goal is with the development and is it just to increase the
number of homes. She stated that they purchased their property because of the quiet area and the kids being
able to play without traffic. Barbeln was vehemently against eliminating the street lights and felt it would
compromise the safety of the neighborhood.

Carrell spoke to the concerns of eliminating the street lights. He said he lives in a neighborhood where the
street lights were eliminated and the homes had the photocells. He feels it is actually safer as the homes
are providing more light overall than just one street light.

Barbeln continued saying that the schools would be impacted and all that she is hearing is the financial
benefit for the developer.

Ben Brandhorst, 10427 Kalen Drive, said he purchased his home because it was on a quiet cul de sac. He
is concerned about the increased traffic and the reduction in green space.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission meeting at 9:36 pm.

Kuitunen asked about the lights and if the developer planned to continue the street lights as the existing
roads already have street lights. Ryan said that all of the homes in the development would have the
photocells and street lights would not be continued into the newer area.

Kuitunen said that this is the first time that the Planning Commission is seeing Kalen Drive and Sixth Street
connected as a loop. Nash confirmed this and stated it was because of the land acquisition of the northwest
triangle being only in its initial discussion phase at the time of the last meeting.

Ryan responded to the residents concerned about the trees and explained that the ravine and the trees
surrounding it would be preserved and stopping at the high point.

Carrell also stated that they are preserving the largest number of trees possible in the northwest area/loop.
He continued that they worked to preserve the drainage and are making sure there is not drainage onto other
properties.

Rebecca Brandhorst, 10427 Kalen Drive, asked how large the lots will be in the development. Carrell said
that every single-family lot complies with the City standards and is between 0.25 and 0.33 of an acre.

Nash spoke to the Board and said that staff is recommending that the preliminary plat and PUD be tabled
until the July meeting in order to address comments, but that the trail does need to be discussed tonight.

Ryan said that if the City does want a trail, the developer could create an easement between houses. Nash
responded that it would need to be a deeded parcel or an outlot instead of an easement and also how would
the trail be accessed for maintenance.

Kuitunen asked who would take care a trail or boardwalk. Barrett expressed concern for safety as the trail
would end at the back of Hanover Elementary.

Schendel agreed that the outlots need to be defined along with the ownership and maintenance.

Barrett asked if the snowmobile trail was still in place and Nash responded yes and pointed it out on the
plat map.



Barrett asked why the collector road is not going through the development as stated in the Comprehensive
Plan. Nash responded explaining that if the collector road was in place, it would go through the ravine area
which would either need a crossing or be filled, and trees would be removed as well.

Kuitunen asked about the lots in the PUD area. Nash said that these lots would be located in the northern
portion with access off of Beebe Lake Road. They would have similar setbacks to the villas in the Rivers
Edge development, but the buildings could be potentially narrower.

Kuitunen said that the drainage issues have not been discussed before. Edison said that the water resources
team had looked at the development and she would take a look at that information and also the properties
that said they had issues. Edison continued that her comments in the memo were all addressable.

Kuitunen asked about the ordinance related to street lighting. Nash said that she would have to take a look
at it, but if it is part of the PUD, it would be allowable. She continued that is something to be discussed if
the Board feels continuity from the west should be followed along with who does the maintenance if not an
HOA. Ryan stated that the developers are open to having just the townhomes on the photocells and street
lighting in the rest of the development.

Barrett asked if the City owns most outlots. Nash responded that has been the previous practice and the
Board has seen this in the last few developments. Continuing, she said how this development differs is that
the City has had nothing of this sort with such large wetlands and forested areas. Schendel commented that
if the City doesn’t own the outlots, then who would be responsible for them and the expense of maintenance.

MOTION by Schendel to table the preliminary plat and planned unit development for The Overlook and
Vistas at Crow River until the July meeting, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 9:54 pm.
Big Bore Barbecue — 10940 4" Street NE

Nash explained that Big Bore Barbecue, 10940 4™ Street, was seeking two variances. One variance is for
the number of parking stalls and the second variance is for the setback of parking stalls to the edge of the
property. She said the Board will also be looking at their site plan.

Nash said that the owner, Chad Brink, will be constructing an addition to the building; formalizing the patio
area; and constructing additional parking on a second parcel he had purchased. The second parcel is
adjacent to CSAH 19 and as the reconstruction project for CSAH 19 has not been finalized, this applicant
is impacted and is asking to delay the parking lot construction and leave it as a gravel lot until after the
CSAH 19 project has been completed.

Nash explained that there are 143 parking stalls needed for the Big Bore Barbecue and the applicant is
proposing to have 135 parking stalls which would be 94 percent of what is required. She continued that a
few parking stalls may be lost due to the right-of-way with the CSAH 19 project. Nash said that the second
variance has the parking stalls closer to the property line than the ordinance requires. She said that staff is
recommending approval of both variances and the site plan.

Chad Brink, applicant, explained to the Board that he tried to approach this with common sense. The south
parking lot has a heavy tree line along the west side of it which belongs to the school district. There is
another set of trees along the east side between the lot and the parking lot for the Post Office. Brink
continued saying he tried to maximize parking and getting rid of the stalls in the cul de sac would have an
impact on business. He said that the cul de sac stalls are being used for curbside pickup. He said that those
could change to compact car parking only if needed.

There were no audience members that wished to speak.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission meeting at 10:03 pm.



Nash reminded the Board that separate recommendations would be needed for each item related to the Big
Bore Barbecue.

MOTION by Kuitunen to recommend the variance related to the number of parking stalls forward to the
City Council for approval, seconded by Schendel.
Motion carried unanimously.

MOTION by Kuitunen to recommend the variance of the distance from the parking stalls to the property
line forward to the City Council for approval, seconded by Schendel.
Motion carried unanimously.

MOTION by Kuitunen to recommend the site plan forward to the City Council for approval, seconded by
Schendel.
Motion carried unanimously.

River Inn — 11220 River Road NE and 11201 Church Street NE
Kolasa closed the Planning Commission and opened the Public Hearing at 10:05 pm.

Nash reminded the Board that the applicant, the River Inn, has applied for two variances related to parking
and provided a site plan. However, with the newly submitted site plan, there are an additional six variance
applications needed. Nash continued that per State law, cities are required to work within a time frame and
make a decision unless the applicant files an extension. She said that the River Inn filed an extension today
allowing for more time and discussion related to the applications and the applications that still needed to
be submitted.

Nash continued to provide information related to the River Inn. A preliminary plat is necessary because of
the property purchased on Church Street that abuts the River Inn parcel. At the time of the application, it
was intended to be a parking lot and the house would be removed and placed on another parcel. A change
in the site plan now has the house remaining as a separate lot. The house would be used as storage and the
applicant wants the back part of the Church Street lot to be used for parking with the customers using River
Road to go in and out of the newly formed parking area. In addition, the pavilion will be constructed with
restrooms and a service area.

Barrett asked about the existing storage building on the River Inn parcel. Nash replied it would be torn
down.

Nash said that staff recommends that the parcels in question should be one lot and not the two as proposed.
An additional variance would be needed if it were two lots as the parcel with the house on it would not meet
the required size as outlined in the Zoning Ordinance.

Nash moved to the first variance related to the number of parking stalls required. She pointed out the pre-
Covid parking stalls numbering between 30 and 33 on site. Kuitunen asked what the calculations for
parking would be with the new site plan. Nash responded that it was a little nebulous with the outdoor
calculations. In order to calculate parking spots, areas need to be defined and clarifications are needed.
She gave an example of a rock ledge that could be an area where people could sit and have a drink while
waiting for a table and how would it be defined. At this time, there isn’t a new calculation.

Kuitunen asked for snow storage location as it is not indicated on the site plan.

Nash went on to the second variance which is a reduction in the amount of parking stalls provided
previously. She said that this may or may not be needed dependent on the site plan provided.



Nash outlined the six additional variances that are needed:

Lot 2 does not meet the minimum lot size requirement in the zoning district.

Off-street parking areas need access from a driveway and not directly from a public street.
Parking within ten feet of the property line.

Parking must be at least ten feet from a building.

Commercial driveways cannot be less than 24 feet wide.

Impervious coverage not exceed 75 percent of the property.

While staff is recommending tabling the items, Nash said it is useful to talk about these issues and provide
feedback for the variances along with feedback about the site plan.

Kuitunen said that the number of parking spaces is hard to talk to about if we don’t know what is needed
particularly when another applicant just provided the Board with a specific percentage. Nash said that at
least 75 parking stalls are needed but they may only provide 44 or less.

Jim DiOrio, spokesman for the applicant, explained that this is going to be done in phases. He went on to
say that these items need to be voted on tonight because staff has said the applicant needs to do everything
at once. DiOrio made the comment that 75 parking stalls will never be met. He said that Phase 2 should
tie the parking space at the rear of the Church Street lot into the public parking lot as the public parking lot
was poorly designed and was dangerous.

Nash said that the proposed plan did not indicate phases and that it was submitted after the application
deadline. The newly submitted site plan was different than what had been discussed previously and
feedback given by the Board. She showed the application and site plan from the May meeting. She asked
for a reason why the applicant could not show Phase 2.

DiOrio stated that the River Inn is feeling that they are being bullied.

Nash responded that staff and the Planning Commission were expecting to see the plan discussed at the
May meeting instead of what was submitted. She said that the additional variances need to be applied for
and it will be reviewed at the July meeting. Also, Phase 2 can be included for review.

Scott Dahlke, applicant’s engineer, said that they have the staff report that lists what is needed.

After comments were made to continue forward without the applications, Nash stated that if it is not on the
application, the staff and the Planning Commission cannot review it. She explained the legal requirements
again stating that variances need to be publicized, letters need to be sent to property owners, and unless it
is applied for, it cannot be acted upon. Biren reinforced her comments.

Kuitunen also responded saying that the Board had worked through everything with the applicant and this
was the first time seeing this site plan and reacting to it. Ganfield agreed saying that this is not a complete
plan.

Dahlke said that the applicant needs this feedback and that this is beneficial. He continued saying that the
applicant would apply for the needed variances as well as define and show Phase 2.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 10:44 pm.

MOTION by Schendel to table the items related to the River Inn, seconded by Barrett.
Motion carried unanimously.

RJT Addition

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 10:45 pm.



Nash stated that there are three applications related to the RJT Addition, or the Downtown Subdivision,
before the Planning Commission:

e Re-subdividing three parcels adjacent to one another.
e A planned unit development (PUD) as there are items not in compliance with zoning.
e Rezoning a parcel to R2, Multi-family Residential.

Nash said that when the Board reviewed this project last month, the house on Church Street was going to
be moved to the third lot, but now it is being proposed to build a new house. Usually, when there is a PUD,
the type of housing and architectural style is provided and since it is not, staff is looking for clarification
on how to handle it. She reminded the Board that the discussion was started as Jodi Tappe did not want to
tear down the house on Church Street.

DiOrio asked if the third lot could be a PUD lot. Nash replied if the Planning Commission and the City
Council approve it as such.

Kuitunen asked if a new construction home would meet the setbacks. Nash responded that the site plan
before them is configured for the home from Church Street. Kuitunen commented that it did clean up the
property lines for the three parcels.

Nash said typically the architecture is required when it is not compliant with the Zoning Ordinance as there
would not be any control over how the house would look. Dahlke asked if there was a way for the
architecture to be reviewed with the building permit. Biren stated that it is difficult when something like
this is not part of the PUD and needs to be reviewed at time of building permit. Without a timeline, future
staff may not have it reviewed and a building permit would be issued without it. Barrett asked if this would
be setting a precedent.

Barrett asked if the Board could approve items separately. Nash responded that since the area was going
to be rezoned, it is preferrable to tie everything together as one package. She suggested recommending the
approval of the architecture at a later date. The Board could give approval or table it until the architecture
is provided.

Schendel said he thinks it should be approved with the restriction on the architecture to be reviewed at a
later date.

Kolasa said that the moving of the house from Church Street was what triggered this plan.
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 10:53 pm.

MOTION by Schendel to recommend approval of the rezoning to R2; approval of the PUD with it being
subject to architectural approval by the Planning Commission and the items listed in the memo; and
approval of the plat with standard conditions, all going forward to the City Council, seconded by Ganfield.
Motion carried unanimously.

Unfinished Business
None

New Business
Concept Plan by Sunram Development at PID 108-500-354100 and P1D 108-500-021200 along
River Road — CSAH 20

Nash introduced the concept plan for a new subdivision along River Road on the south and north side of
CSAH 20. She reminded the Board that a concept plan is a nonbinding recommendation.

Paul Otto, representative for Sunram, explained that this development was designed with one access as
Wright County would only provide approval for one access point. There will be single-family housing on
the southern section. There are floodplain areas that do not have lots on them. The second part of the
development is zoned commercial and that is on the northern section. The sewer and water would be



coming from the east and gaining access has not yet been determined. The developer understands that a
park and trail system is slated for this area and would like direction and feedback.

Nash stated that there is a regional trail with Three Rivers Park District that connects the area cities planned.
Also, a park is identified in the Comprehensive Plan near the area called the Tube.

Barrett asked if the homes along CSAH 20 would have backyards against the highway. Nash replied yes.
Barrett said she is having a hard time visualizing the two areas and a street fitting into this space.

Kuitunen asked how close to CSAH 20 are the houses. Otto stated the setback is 50 feet.

Otto commented that the developers are looking at straight zoning and do not intend to apply for a planned
unit development.

Kuitunen asked about wetlands on the properties. Otto said they have had a wetland delineation completed
and will work with the City on the floodplain.

Kuitunen asked how it is determined if a park is needed. Nash replied that the Comprehensive Plan
identifies a potential park to the west of this site, but does not indicate a specific site, just a recommendation
of the area by the Tube. If it is determined a park is needed in this area, it would be a natural park. This is
a discussion that needs to be worked through with Planning Commission, Park Board and Council.

Mike Trullinger, 10778 River Road, began by indicating the understanding that change is coming to
Hanover, but stated that it needs to be done correctly. He pointed out that on the concept plan, the existing
houses and structures are missing from the survey. The existing homes and lots along River Road are much
larger than the proposed single-family homes in the development, but was happy the proposed homes were
a smaller amount than previous developments. Trullinger questioned the prospect of commercial zoning
adjacent to the pond. He stated as a retired Hanover Fire Department member, he would like to know about
the infrastructure and hydrant placement. Continuing, he said that the speed limit on the county road is too
high and there have been many accidents near his house and the area by the Tube. He went on to explain
that site distances are such that it is difficult to get out of his driveway safely. Also, with the CSAH 19
Project not being fully decided, the traffic on CSAH 20 will be impacted as it is currently. The current
timing of the traffic lights for traffic on CSAH 20 and east on River Road is much shorter than the north-
south traffic on CSAH 19. Trullinger also asked about the impact of the new developments on the school
system. The area along the Crow River does have occasional flooding and he wondered how a park would
be successful at the Tube since people have used it as a dump and there is little parking. He also asked how
property values would be impacted if homes had businesses next to them. Trullinger thanked the Board for
the work they do.

Chris Peterson, 10886 River Road, told the Board he lives in the house next to the Treehouse Daycare. He
commented that he found out that his property is zoned commercial and wondered when that had happened.
He also said he is concerned with the smaller lot sizes.

Doug Lee, 10798 River Road, also voiced his concerns with the commercial zoning on the north side of
CSAH 20 as that is a wooded area and could be prime residential lots. He agreed with Trullinger about the
speed limit and the traffic lights. Lee also thought the proposed lots did not match existing homes and their
lots. He also wondered how the newly installed infrastructure would impact him and if he would be required
to connect to utilities and at what cost.

Nash replied that she doesn’t see the proposed utilities as being accessible to current residents.
Edison answered that fire hydrants would be within the new development.
Barrett said that she likes the idea of a park in this area and thinks it is important to have one in the area.

She does not know where it would be located and is hoping the Park Board would have direction in placing
it. Nash agreed that this needs to be investigated.



Paul Bursch, 10906 River Road, recommends a park down by the Tube.

Barrett said that she would prefer that the homes along CSAH 20 would be removed and perhaps put in
larger lots along the river.

Ganfield responded saying that having a house back up to CSAH 20 is pretty common all the way to
Rockford.

Nash responded to some of the comments. The proposed development area needs a certain amount of
density in order to make installing utilities cost efficient. The trail is part of the Three Rivers Park District
and there will need to be some coordination with them.

Schendel agreed that the north side of CSAH 20 would be nicer for homes rather than businesses. Nash
explained that the Comprehensive Plan guides the northern side of CSAH 20 as commercial as there are
not a lot of possibilities within Hanover for commercial businesses. This could be changed if the developer
applied for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment.

Ganfield agreed with houses on the north side.

Christina Kenney, 10818 River Road, asked what is the City’s plan for preserving the trees. Nash responded
that the City does not have a strong tree preservation ordinance. The developer would have to do a tree
inventory and indicate the trees to be preserved as part of the preliminary plat process.

The question was asked if a current resident would be covered under a Comprehensive Plan Amendment if
they wanted to change their zoning. Nash said that she would advise leaving it as it is as it until they think
of selling.

Nash said the items from the discussions seem to be exploring the park concept and possibly having the
northern side of CSAH 20 as residential.

New Business
Estate Development Corporation Concept Plan at 1112 River Road NE

Nash explained that the property at 1112 River Road is guided industrial in the southern part and multi-
family in the northern part. It is being proposed to have smaller lot, single-family homes that would blend
with the existing homes along 12" Street and Irvine Drive. In the industrial area, there are two lots proposed
with one being lot mini storages and the other lot is undetermined. There will be a parking lot for the
Hanover Historical Society which will be off of the shared access from River Road and the shared access
street that would match up with 11" Street. There is a large wetland on the west side of the property. The
residents would also have access from 12" Street through an existing outlot.

Tom Gonyea, Estate Development Corporation, provided information related to the industrial portion of
the proposed development and introduced Byren Bjorkland, the owner of the proposed mini-storage.

Carla Dunham, Centra Homes, provided additional information about the detached single-family homes. It
is understood that the northern portion is guided with a higher density. The smaller lots and homes would
provide a good buffer between the industrial portion and the larger single-family homes to the north in the
existing developments.

Barrett asked for confirmation that the parcel is zoned differently. Nash confirmed that the northern portion
is zoned multi-family and the southern portion is industrial. Kuitunen asked how the multi-family zoning
requirement would be met and Nash said that the Comprehensive Plan has multi-family zoning as four to
twelve (4-12) units per acre and the developer would be able to meet it at just over four units per acre.



Barrett observed that the placement of the proposed housing appeared double in nature to the existing
homes. She pointed out on the concept plan how there seemed to be two lots in the proposed development
to one in the existing development. She also said it does not blend well with the existing neighborhood.
Nash said that it is different zoning and the proposed single-family homes blend better than other options
from the multi-family zoning.

Schendel asked what would be the average lot size. Dunham said that the lot would be 55 x 110 feet with
a house pad of 40 x 60 feet. He asked about a price point for the homes. Dunham replied the homes would
be considered entry level homes with a price point between $300,000-$400,000.

Kuitunen asked if there would be an HOA. Dunham replied there would not be an HOA. They are trying
to promote home ownership and an HOA would not be needed.

Barrett asked if a deck would fit on the proposed lots and Nash replied yes.

A resident expressed concern about the trees being removed and then hearing the noise from the Industrial
Park.

Chad Libby, 1315 Oakwood Lane, spoke to the increased growth in Hanover and what it looks like
particularly with the traffic on River Road and improvements that need to be made to increase the safety of
the road.

Brian Trisko, 11419 12 Street, asked how the growth will impact the water and sewer capabilities. Edison
responded that there is sewer and water plan and it accounts for potential growth. Trisko also asked for
clarification on the blue section of the concept plan. Nash replied that is a stormwater pond. He mentioned
that there are parts of the parcel that do flood and would like to know how it will impact the development.
Edison responded that grading and stormwater plans are part of the preliminary plat and it will be addressed
through those plans. Gonyea also said that the concept plan only has some existing contours and does not
show the grading contours.

Bruce Zilke, 1299 Esterly Oaks Drive, explained that he is next to the proposed development and expressed
concern about the blind spot at 12" Street and River Road. He is concerned with the traffic now and with
the future developments.

Ruth Muehring, RIM Self Storage, 11480 10" Street, expressed concern that the mini-storage may increase
the amount of traffic on the access street. She also asked about how many units are proposed and the
setback from River Road. Libby asked if another storage unit facility was needed as there is a new facility
in St. Michael. Muehring said their facility is close to being full. Bjorkland said it would a 75,000 square
foot facility which is climate controlled. There would not be any outdoor storage. Access would be through
gates located on the access street from River Road.

Biren read an email received from Colleen Williams, Hanover Historical Society President, that voiced
support of the development which includes a parcel designated to be a parking lot for the Historical Society.

Paul Saletel, 1252 Irvine Drive, also expressed concern about the traffic. He also asked why there was not
a park in the area. If kids want to go to a park, they need to cross River Road at 12" Street and it is very
dangerous with a 45 mph speed limit. There is also a blind spot created by trees. Saletel also said that 15
Street is dangerous with all of the truck traffic on it.

Trisko asked if a lighted crosswalk could be installed. Edison responded that pedestrian crossings are tricky
and need to be in the correct spot. She is also concerned with giving the kids and people using the crosswalk
a false sense of security.

Kuitunen agreed there are problems with River Road. The trail is on one side and residents on the opposite
side of the road need to cross the road to access the trail. He also asked if turn lanes would be needed for
accessing the development. Schendel agreed and said that River Road would need to be widened.



Barrett asked if the multi-family portion of the development could be rezoned to single-family and the
houses would reflect that rezoning. She agreed that a park needs to be in the area. Barrett said that right
now, she would not approve the development because of its proposed density and lack of park.

Nash responded that the developer could propose rezoning it to single-family and it would lower the density.
She reminded the Board that if a developer brings in a proposal that meets the zoning requirements, the
Board cannot refuse to approve it based on dislike.

Rick Gedart, 11375 12 Street, stated he has never seen a crosswalk in a 45 mph zone. He also asked about
how the existing homes would abut the proposed homes since the area seems much lower. Gonyea said
that grading has not been determined and that would be shown in the preliminary plat. Gedart made the
general comment that it seems like a lot of trees will be removed.

Nash said that the concerns she is hearing include the setbacks from River Road, a park in the area, and
access to River Road with turn lanes.

Barrett asked what warrants a traffic study. Edison responded that there are certain conditions that
automatically require a traffic study or it can be requested by Council. Barrett said that the last traffic study
was with Rivers Edge. Edison was going to check with St. Michael to see if the development just north of
the Fehn Aggregate Mine had required a traffic study. Ganfield asked if a traffic study may be premature
as not all of Rivers Edge had been constructed. Nash stated that there had been a traffic study completed
with the St. Michael development and they would need to review it.

Reports and Announcements
Biren said that four building permits have been issued for Rivers Edge Second Addition and there
are another nine waiting for review.

Adjournment

MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 12:36 am, Tuesday, June 28, 2022.

ATTEST:

Amy L. Biren
Administrative Assistant



Amy Biren F(/RIW\ ‘/\’é\ﬂ\f ﬂ\f’«k’/M\\f\b

From: Cindy Nash <cnash@collaborative-planning.com>
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2022 8:02 AM

To: Amy Biren

Cc: Jennifer Nash

Subject: FW: Fehn IUP

From: Michael Christenson <mgchristenson@yahoo.com>

Sent: Monday, June 27, 2022 7:02 AM

To: Cindy Nash <cnash@collaborative-planning.com>; cityadmin@ci.hamover.mn.us
Subject: Fehn 1UP

Mike Christenson-former Planning Commission member
1361 Esterly Oaks Dr

Hi Cindy and Jennifer,

I may not be at the meeting tonight, so | wanted to pass along this message to the Planning Commission and City
Council.

As you know, a lot of work was put into the current IUP that was just passed a couple years ago and some concessions
were made by the city residents and Fehn to allow it to happen.

These controversial concerns still remain. The mine noise/dust and truck traffic are as disruptive as anticipated at that
time. The current IUP allows for this mine to exist while not being completely disruptive of the of the residents all

weekend long.

I would encourage the Planning Commission and City Council to keep the current IUP in place and not expand the
number of trucks or operating hours.

Thank you for your time,
Mike Christenson



Amy Biren EDC — WL Ruvewr el

From: Colleen Williams <colleen@hanoverhistoricalsociety.org>

Sent: Monday, June 27, 2022 11:46 AM

To: City Hall; Amy Biren

Cc: Joe Kaul

Subject: Statement for 6/27 PC mtg re: Estate Development Corporation Concept Plan

Can this statement below please be included/read at tonight's scheduled Planning Commission Meeting when Estate
Development Corporation's Concept Plan is discussed? Thank you! Colleen

Planning Commission Members:

The Hanover Historical Society (HHS) supports Estate Development Corporation's preliminary Concept Plan brought
forward to the Planning Commission on 6/27/2022 which includes a parcel to be designated as a parking lot for

HHS. We plan to continue conversations with all parties involved to ensure the best use of any additional land secured
by HHS and expect to give input on any future development of the land immediately west-adjacent to our existing HHS

property.

-Colleen Williams, HHS President



THE HIGHLANDS

AT CROW RIVE
&

THE VISTAS
AT CROW RIVER

£ A HOMESTEAD
LY PARTNERS







We as a team Iinstructed our Surveyors
and Engineers to design this project
based on the comment’s we received
from the City Council, Planning

Commission, City Staff and the
neighbors surrounding the Project. We
feel we have answered these
recommendations and together with the
Staff created a very addition to the
community.




Community benefits of design features.

A.

Use and extension of four temporary cul-de-sac have been
removed, which also give back some front yard areas to the
residence on these temporary cul-de-sacs

. The neighborhood concern of increased traffic is minimized as

we do not have through traffic extending out to Beebe Lake
Road.

. The preservation of the ravine by not filling and extending the

street through across the ravine to Beebe Lake Road. This also
preserves numerous mature maple and oak trees.

. Added the adjoining parcel toward Beebe Lake Road at this

time making the area a more complete neighborhood.

. Various lots types and sizes with offering of multiple housing

product options.




Financial Benefits to the City of Hanover

65 Lots x $15,000 (Per Permit) = $975,000
Park Fees = 65 x $3,272 = $212,680

SAC Fees 65 x $6192= $402,480

WAC Fees=65 x $2,286 = $148,590

Water Trunk Fee 65 x 903= $58,695

Total Financial Benefit = $ 1,797,445




Additional benefits to the City of Hanover

 Homestead Partners will also pay off a $110,000
debt assessment to City of Hanover associated
with this parcel of land from a previous plan.

« Additional tax revenue by development of this
property will provide $650,000 in annual real
estate taxes (based on an average home price of
$500,000)




Developer requests with approval of plat

Delete Streetlights and install hardwired photocells
on exterior lights on homes

Early grading permit at City Council approval of
preliminary plat.

Early Model and Spec Permits 1 Model, 1 Spec each

product.

SAC & WAC Fees to be paid with permit application of
homes.

Park dedication fees to be paid with permit
application on homes

Bond versus Letter of Credit for Improvements.




Bond vs.

Developer
Equity

Letter of Credit

How Capital Stack Work

> |If Average lot value is $100,000
> If Bank allows 65% Loan to Value bank loan = $65,000

» If Cost is 52% of Revenue = $82,000 (Incl. land)
» If LOC is 125% = $77,000
» If LOC is 150% = $93,000

Gap in Stack
Bank advance maximum is $65,000-$75,000

BOND LETTER OF CREDIT

$23,000 $23,000
- $77,000
= $100,000




The
Highlands

at
Crow River

» 34 Single Family Lots
»5 Oversized Estate Single Family






Homes at The Highlands




»50” Wide Lots

The V|stas » Two Stories and
at Rambler Style Plans
CFOW River »Home-Owner’s

Association




Rambler Villas at The Vistas







The Preliminary Application
Guidelines for approval per
the City Code have been
met. We are looking for
your approval tonight. We
are available for questions.

Thank you!



	06-27-22 Official Minutes Minutes
	PHN Comments via Email 062722
	Hanover Communities 5-24-22
	THE HIGHLANDS �AT CROW RIVER
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15


